



Enhancing Professionalism & Competence

HYROLOGISTS REGISTRATION BOARD ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2022

Prepared in accordance with the Accrual Basis of Accounting Method under the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENTi
2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSiv
3. MANAGEMENT TEAMiv
4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENTxi
5. REPORT OF THE REGISTRAR/ CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERxii
6. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2021/22
7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENTxvii
8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISxx
4. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTINGxx
5. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORSxxii
6. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES xxv
7. REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR FOR THE HYDROLOGISTS REGISTRATION BOARDxxv
8. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
9. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
10. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNI 2022 3
11. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
12. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
13. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
14. APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General's Recommendations
Appendix II: Transfers from Other Government Entities

1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information

The Hydrologists Registration Board was formed under the Hydrologists Act No 19 of 2017. It was gazetted on 19th July, 2019 and officially launched on 5th of December, 2019. The Board is mandated with the responsibility of registering and regulating all persons and entities practicing in the field of Hydrology and building capacity for individual hydrologists and hydrology consulting firms, as well as regulating their conducts for improved and sustainable performance of the Hydrology profession. At the policy level, the Board is headed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors who is responsible for policy and strategic direction of the Board. The Registrar/Chief Executive Officer is in charge of running the daily affairs of the Board.

(b) Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Board are;

- i) To regulate, co-ordinate and oversee practice of hydrology;
- ii) To promote standards of professional competence and practice amongst hydrologists;
- iii) To coordinate research, investigations and surveys in hydrological field;
- iv) To recognize institutions that furnish a sufficient guarantee of academic knowledge of practical experience in hydrology;
- v) To demand and certify hydrological studies and reports necessary for design of hydraulic structures;
- vi) To collaborate with other bodies or organizations in development of programs and facilities for advancement of hydrology and well-being of hydrologists; and
- vii) To perform any other function that is incidental or consequential to its functions under this Act any other written law.

(c) Key Management

The Hydrologists Registration Board's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

- i) The Board of Directors.
- ii) Registrar/Chief Executive Officer.
- iii) Temporarily deployed staff from the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation.

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2022 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No.	Designation	Name
(i)	Registrar/Chief Executive Officer	Antony Mwenje
(ii)	Deputy Chief State Counsel	Rose A. Nyakwana
(iii)	Internal Audit	James Areba
(iv)	Technical	Julius Muindi
(v)	Human Resource and Administration	Beatrice Ndungi
(vi)	Accounts	Alice Mzera
(vii)	Supply Chain Management	Denis Ouko
(viii)	Finance	Dominic Kibowen
(ix)	Planning and Strategy	Ruth Kimani

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Board's oversight responsibility is vested in the;

- i) Strategy and Technical Committee which had five (5) members.
- ii) Finance, Human Resource and Governance Committee which had four (4) members.
- iii) Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee which had five (5) members.

(f) Entity Headquarters

Hydrologists Registration Board

P. O. Box 51244-00100

Maji House, Ngong Road

Nairobi, KENYA

(g) Entity Contacts

Tel: 0202716103

Email: info@hydrologistsboard.go.ke Website: www.hydrologistsboard.go.ke

(h) Entity Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank

Capitol Hill Branch

P.O. Box 58233

City Square 00200

NHIF Building, Ngong Road

Nairobi, Kenya.

(i) Independent Auditors

Auditor-General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General

State Law Office and Department of Justice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ref	IE BOARD OF DIRECTORS Directors	Details
Kei	Directors	Details
1.		Mr. Lawrence Thooko holds a BSc. in Meteorology from the University of Nairobi and MSc. in Water Resources Engineering from the University of Guelph, Ontario, Canada. His professional career spans 38 years from initial employment as a Hydrologist with the Ministry in charge of Water to working as Deputy Technical Coordination Manager of the Water Resources Authority.
	Mr. Lawrence Thooko Board Chairperson	His areas of expertise include Applied Hydrology, Hydraulics, Hydro-meteorological data management, catchment management strategies and management plans, data management, Hydrologic Computations, Water Resources Planning and Development, amongst others. He was a core team member in the development of the Nile Basin Decision Support System (NB-DSS) and was the team leader and coordinator of the Nordic Climate Facility (NCF) Project where he led in developing strategies for Climate Change adaptation.
		He is a published author and is currently a Consulting Hydrologist in private practice. He is a member of the Hydrological Society of Kenya.
2.	Mr. Benson Cheboswony Independent Board Member	Mr. Cheboswony holds a BSc. degree in Hydrometeorology from the University of Nairobi and a Post-graduate diploma in Hydrological Engineering from the IHE-DELFT in the Netherlands. His professional experience began as a Hydrologist in the then Ministry of Water and he has since worked in various districts and counties as a Hydrologist and as District Water Officer. He was previously the County Director for Water, Lands and Environment in Elgeyo Marakwet County. He is a Director of the Iten-Tambach Water and Sewerage Company Ltd. in Elgeyo Marakwet County. He is currently the Chairperson of the Hydrology Registration Board's Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
3.		Mr. Ouma was Biochemistry major at the Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology before pursuing a Master of Philosophy in Environmental Health at Moi University. He also

Ref	Directors	Details
4.	Mr. Zephania Ouma Representing the Director- General, NEMA.	holds post-graduate diplomas in Cleaner Production and in Risk Assessment and Monitoring for Environmental Chemicals from Dresden University of Technology and Kobe University respectively. He is a member of the Environmental Institute of Kenya (EIK) and is a registered Environmental Impact Assessment/Environmental Audit (EIA/EA) lead expert and is also a certified EIA/EA reviewer. He is an environmental practitioner with vast experience as Principal Environmental Research Officer, Environmental Inspector, and Senior EIA Officer for the National Environment Management Authority (NEMA), and as a District Environment Officer in various districts. He is currently the Deputy Director for NEMA's Compliance Section, and represents the Director-General, NEMA on the Board. Mr. Ngecho holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration (Accounting Option) from Bugema University, Uganda, and is currently undertaking his
	Mr. Mark Ngecho Representing Principal Secretary at the National Treasury.	Dniversity, Uganda, and is currently undertaking his professional training in Advanced Accounting/CPA. Prior to joining public service, he was a manager at some of Kenya's leading financial institutions. He has over 10 years' experience in the Public Sector Finance at the National Treasury, and as National Sub-County Accountant in various Counties. He is a skilled public resources manager and currently serves as the Chief Investment Officer at the National Treasury and Planning. He represents the Principal Secretary at the National Treasury on the Board. He is currently the Chairperson of the Board's Finance, Human Resource and Governance Committee.
5.	Mr. Daniel T. Mogusu Chief Hydrologist	Mr. Mogusu holds a BSc. (Hons) Degree from the University of Nairobi and a Master of Arts in International Conflict Management specializing in Natural Resources-based Conflict Management, Mediation, Negotiation, Water Diplomacy and Peace Building. His professional background spans over 30 years and he has garnered considerable experience as a Hydrologist in various districts. He is a qualified Administrator and was instrumental in the setting up and institutionalization of the Trans-boundary Waters Division at the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and

Ref	Directors	Details
	Eng. Stephen K. Kogi Representing Principal Secretary, State Department for Infrastructure	Eng. Kogi is a Chief Engineer in the Ministry of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works. He represents the Principal Secretary, State Department for Infrastructure on the Hydrologists Registration Board.
8.	Mr. Jeremiah Motari Matunda Representing the Attorney-General	Mr. Matunda is a law professional with over 11 years' experience working in both the public and private sector. He has a Bachelor of Law degree from Shivaji University, India and a Master's of Law in international Law from the University of Nairobi. Additional qualifications include a Bachelor of Social laws from Shivaji University, an Associate Diploma in Insurance from the Insurance Institute in India, a Post-graduate diploma in Corporate Governance from Shivaji University as well as a fellowship diploma in Insurance. He is currently pursuing a doctorate in International Law from the University of Nairobi. He is a Senior State Counsel in the office of the Attorney-General, specializing in Environmental, Energy, Natural Resources and Property Law dispute resolution. He is currently a Member of the Hydrologists Registration Board, representing the
9.	Mr. Antony Mwenje Registrar/Chief Executive Officer	Attorney-General. Mr. Mwenje is a Professional Hydrologist who holds a BSc. degree in Hydrology from the University of Nairobi, a MSc. degree in Integrated Water Management from the University of Queensland in Brisbane, Australia, and a Post-graduate diploma in Applied Hydrology and Information Systems for Water Management jointly from the University of Nairobi and the Institute for Meteorological Training and Research, Nairobi. He began his career with the Ministry of Water and has since worked as a Hydrologist and District Water Officer in various districts, as a Water Conservation Officer and as Water Resources Specialist with the

Ref	Directors	Details
		Water Resources Authority and with the ADB-funded Ewaso Ng'iro North Natural Resources Management Project, respectively. He has honed his management and leadership skills by undertaking training in Strategic Leadership Development and Management courses. He is currently the Board Registrar/Chief Executive Officer and is an ex-officio member of the Board

3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

3. M	ANAGEMENT TEAM	
	Management	Details
		Mr. Mwenje is a Professional Hydrologist who holds
		a BSc. degree in Hydrology from the University of
		Nairobi, a MSc. degree in Integrated Water
		Management from the University of Queensland in
		Brisbane, Australia, and a Post-graduate diploma in
		Applied Hydrology and Information Systems for
		Water Management jointly from the University of
		Nairobi and the Institute for Meteorological Training
		and Research, Nairobi.
	24	He began his career with the Ministry of Water and
1.	A*	has since worked as a Hydrologist and District
		Water Officer in various districts, as a Water
		Conservation Officer and as Water Resources
		Specialist with the Water Resources Authority and
	Mr. Antony Mwenje	with the ADB-funded EwasoNg'iro North Natural
		Resources Management Project, respectively. He
		has honed his management and leadership skills by
		undertaking training in Strategic Leadership
		Development and Management courses. He is
		currently the Board Registrar/Chief Executive
		Officer and is an ex-officio member of the Board
		Rose is an advocate of the high court of Kenya, a commissioner for oaths, a state counsel for over ten
1		(10) years and has practiced for a total of fifteen
		years (15)
		education
		She pursued B.A public administration, Panjab
		university;
		- LLB, benareshindun university;
	5.3	-post graduate diploma: Kenya school of law;
	Can !!	-LLM, international trade law and investment,
2.		Nairobi university;
		professional training
		-regional integration course in Korea by koica
	3	-senior management course at Kenya school of
	Ma Dago Nasiana	government
	Ms. Rose Nyakwana	-strategic leadership course at Kenya school of
		government
		-governance courses at Kenya school of governance
		and KCA
		-international investment law and dispute resolution
		membership to professional bodies

	Management	Details
		She is a member of the law society of Kenya in good standing and a member of federation of women lawyers, Kenya
3	Mr. James Areba	Mr. James Areba holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration (Finance Option) from Catholic University of East Africa before pursuing a Master of Business Administration (Finance Option) from University of Nairobi. He also holds a Diploma in Accountancy. CPA Areba is qualified Accountant with vast experience in Internal Audit. He is a certified Fraud Examiner, Member of the institute of internal Auditors and ICPAK. He is current the Assistant Internal Auditor General in the National Treasury. He is the Head Internal
4.	Mr. Julius Muindi	Auditor in the Hydrologist Registration Board Mr. Julius Muindi holds a bachelor's degree in Science (Meteorology) from University of Nairobi. He is a Qualified Hydrologist having worked in the water sector in various capacities, from Hydrologist to Senior superintending Hydrologist and member of Hydrological Society of Kenya (HSK). He has experience in the water sector of over 30 years being involved in project implementation activities as well as management. He is Currently working with the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation as a Principal Water Research Officer and also carrying out activities of the Hydrologist Registration Board.
5.	M/s Alice Mzera	M/s Alice holds a proficiency course in Accounts (Accounts Option) from Kenya School of Government Nairobi. A qualified Accountant with vast experience in accounting of over 10 years. She is currently the Accountant II in the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation. Also, the Accountant assigned to Hydrologist Registration Board

	Management	Details
6.	Mr. Dominic Kibowen	Mr. Kibowen holds a bachelor's degree in Commerce (Finance Option) from Egerton University. He also holds a Diploma in Business Administration. Kibowen is qualified Finance and Accountant with vast experience in Finance and accountancy. He also holds CPA II and ongoing with CPA III &IV. He is currently the Finance Officer in the Board
7.	Ms.BeatriceNdungi	Beatrice Wanjiku Ndungi currently stationed in the ministry of water, sanitation and irrigation Human Resource Section as the principal human resource management assistant. She was employed back in 1986 as a clerical officer in the ministry of Education, In November, 2006 did Diploma in Human Resource Management at Institute of Personnel Management and Promoted/ transferred to ministry of Health as a Human resource management Assistant 111. She rose through the rank from November 2013 to JUNE 2019 in the Ministry of Health as a Human Resource Management Assistant 1. She was promoted to Principal Human Resource Management Assistant in the ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation with effect from 30th june 2020 to date. She is assigned additional duties in the Hydrology registration board with effect from October 2020.
8.	Mr. Dennis Ouko	Mr. Dennis Ochieng Ouko holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from St. Paul University, Post Graduate Diploma in business Administration from JKUAT, Diploma in Purchasing and Supplies Management from JKUAT and a registered member of Kenya Institute of Supplies Management Mr. Dennis is a qualified Supplies Chain Officer with vast experience in Procurement with an experience of 18 years in the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and irrigation. She is current the Senior Supplies Chain Management officer in the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation and seconded to the Hydrologists Registration Board.

4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

It gives me great pleasure to present Board's Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ending 30thJune 2022. The Board recorded commendable good performance for an organization that is still very new. We made a great milestone despite having a limited budget and challenges related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Board and its Organs

The Board of Directors was fully constituted with its 3 (three) Board Committees as follows:

- i) Strategy and Technical Committee
- ii) Finance, Human Resource and Governance Committee
- iii) Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

Corporate Performance

During the period under review the Board was able to achieve the following.

- (a) Categorization as a Regulatory State Corporation in category 6C;
- (b) Development of the draft Hydrologists Rules and Regulations;
- (c) Final National Validation on draft HRB Strategic Plan 2022-2026;
- (d) Approval of Human Resource Policy Instruments by SCAC.

Challenges

The Board has faced considerable challenges since its inception which include the following:

- (a) The Board Office space for both the chairperson and the staff is limited;
- (b) During FY 2019/2020, the Board had no official vehicle for both the chairperson and the CEO;
- (c) The budgetary allocation still unable to sustain the Boards operations since the board is in its peak in operationalization of key policies and plans and request for further consideration.

I however take note that the Board's allocation for the next financial year is set to increase which will enable us to fast-track operationalization and other activities. I am therefore optimistic that the next financial year will see considerable growth for the Board and full achievement of its mandates.

Acknowledgement

I would like to extend my appreciation to the Cabinet Secretary and Principal Secretary for their guidance and support. I would also want to commend the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation for their continued support, and the Board of Directors, Registrar/CEO and the Board's staff for their dedicated service which enabled the Board to operate despite many challenges.

Shi-	 		
Lawrence Thooko			
Board Chairperson			
Date: 22/02/2023			

5. REPORT OF THE REGISTRAR/ CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I present the Hydrologists Registration Board Report and Financial Statements for the FY 2021/2022. During this period, the Board faired reasonably well as disbursements from the Government.

Financial Results

The Board during the reporting period experienced several challenges:

- (a) Inadequate funding: During the reporting year, the Board received Ksh.15,000,000 out of the approved budget of Kshs.15, 000,000 for Recurrent budget. With this allocation, the Board was unable to complete operationalization activities planned for the financial year.
- (b) Irregular allocations: The funds that were allocated to the Board were received irregularly, making it difficult to plan ahead for activities.
- (c) Inadequate staffing: Currently the Registrar/CEO is the only substantive staff working in the organization; other staff has been deployed from the Parent Ministry to offer additional duties to the Board, over and above their usual duties in their respective Departments. The Board shall plan for recruitment of more key staff subject to the availability of the budget to support personnel emoluments. This will enable the Board to become fully operational and minimize some of the shortcomings noted at the management level. Key staffs required are a Finance Officer/Accountant, Human Resource officer and Hydrologist.

Achievements

Despite these challenges, the Board was able to achieve the following:

- (a) The State Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC) has categorized the Board as a State Corporation in category 6C;
- (b) The draft Hydrologists Rules and Regulations have been developed and have been subjected to several meetings with stakeholders;
- (c) A draft Strategic Plan has been developed and Final national validation workshop done;
- (d) The Human Resource Policy Instruments have been developed and Approved by SCAC

Future Outlook

The Board has been allocated Ksh.25,000,000 for Recurrent budget for FY 2022/2023. This is inadequate to fund all the activities that the Board had scheduled and we hope we will receive further support in the course of the financial year. Moving forward, we hope that there will be progressive allocation that will enhance human resources capacity and facilitate the Board's future programs, activities and projects.

During FY 2022/23, the Board expects to achieve the following:

- (a) Publish and implement the Hydrologists Rules and Regulations;
- (b) Publish and implement the HRB Strategic Plan 2022-2026;
- (c) Implement the HRB Human Resource Policy Instruments;
- (d) Develop a draft Continuous Professional Development Policy;
- (e) Forge partnerships and collaborations with other bodies/institution/organizations for research, competence development and resource mobilization purposes.

Acknowledgement

I thank the Government through the Ministry of Water, Sanitation, and Irrigation for the continued financial, administrative and technical support. I would like to thank also the Board of Directors for their leadership and direction. I appreciate also the contribution and support made by the Board's staff in operationalization activities.

Antony Mwenje

Registrar/ Chief Executive Officer

Date 22/03/2023

6. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2021/22

Hydrologists Registration Board has 6 strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the current Strategic Plan for the FY 2022 - FY 2026. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows:

Pillar 1: Regulation, Coordination and Overseeing the Practice of Hydrology

Pillar 2: Standards of Professional Competence

Pillar 3: Research in Hydrological Services

Pillar 4: Certification of hydrological studies for design of hydrological structures

Pillar 5: Partnership and resource mobilization

Pillar 6: Human Resource Capacity

Hydrologists Registration Board develops its annual work plans based on the above 6 pillars/Themes/Issues. Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Hydrologists Registration Board achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2021-2022 period for its 6 strategic pillars, as indicated in the table below as per the entities annual work plan. The Annual Work Plan targets are directly derived from the strategic and annual work plans of the Hydrologists Registration Board.

Hydra Sgists Registration Board Annual Report and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2022

		Sylve barines	8 - 1 H S	7 (1987) (1987)
Regulation, Coordination and	The Board will coordinate, regulate and oversee the practice of hydrologists through monitoring and licensing the practice of	Number of hydrologists licensed	ı	0%
Overseeing the Practice of Hydrology	hydrologists, ensuring full operationalization of the Hydrologist Act 2017.			
Standards of	The Board will establish standards and	 Number of 	1	0%
Professional	procedures for registration of individuals	hydrologists trained		
Competence	qualified in hydrological sciences and will	 Number of interns 		
	establish and maintain ethical standards and	attached to the boards		
	guidelines in the hydrology profession.	 Number of 		
		conferences hosted		
Research in	The Board will promote hydrological	Number of research	•	0%
Hydrological	development by facilitating resources for	studies conducted		
Services	coordinating research, investigations and			
	surveys and providing a platform for sharing			
	with other hydrology professionals and with			
	all other stakeholders, and shall provide to			
	all stakeholders, with professional advice,			
	guidance and services concerning activities			
	related to hydrology and the practice of			
	hydrology in Kenya.			
Certification	 The Board shall monitor and enforce 	Number of reports	 Workshops, 	100%
of	adherence to set professional and ethical	and studies certified	advertisements,	
hydrological	standards to protect the public and the	Report on	printing of	
studies for	hydrology profession from irresponsible	specification of	Hydrologists Rules	
design of	work, through preparation of a guidelines for	standards	and Regulations.	
hydrological	the preparation of technical reports on			

		extended	support functions.	
		professional services	undertake administrative, technical and	
		 Number of 	plan through recruitment of officers to	Capacity
		recruited	capacity in order to deliver on this strategic	Resource
0%	1	 Number of staff 	The Board will enhance human resources	Human
			its members, and supporting its activities.	
			strengthening and developing the Board and	
			to fund activities and programs aimed at	•
			financial resources from these partnerships	
		mobilized	services, and will endeavour to raise	
		 Amount of funds 	other institutions that have capacity for these	mobilization
		partnerships	training in hydrology by partnering with	and resource
0%	1	 Number of 	The Board will promote education and	Partnership
			professional standards have been adhered to.	
		•	hydrological designs and reports to ensure	
			The Board will certify and approve	
			such works.	
			adhered to by all hydrologists undertaking	
			structures and hydrological works, to be	
			design and implementation of hydraulic	structures
				S 12. 17. 18. 18. 18. 18. 18. 18. 18. 18. 18. 18
i z miażysteroudo – .		Paging home with		11 45 715

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Governing Board of the HRB as established through Legal Notice No. 6466 of 19th July, 2019 is made up of the Board Chairperson, two Independent Board members, the Chief Hydrologist in the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation, five alternates of the Principal Secretaries for the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation, Ministry of the National Treasury and Planning, Ministry of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works, the Director-General, National Environmental Management Authority, and the Attorney-General. The Registrar/Chief Executive Officer is an ex officio member of the Board. All the afore-mentioned have been appointed by name.

In considering nominations to the Board, professional qualifications, gender, experience, and diversity is considered. The Board exercises prudent management, leadership, integrity, innovativeness, and judgement in managing the Board.

The Directors are provided with all the available appropriate and timely information that enables them to exercise full and effective control over strategic, financial, operational and compliance issues.

The daily operations of the Board are performed by the Registrar/Chief Executive Officer who is ably supported by a dedicated team of deployed staff from the Ministry. They are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for the realization of the Board's mandate.

Members of the Board were taken through a comprehensive Mwongozo training and induction programme. The Board, the Committees and individual Directors are expected to be evaluated by an independent body against targets agreed to at the beginning of the year.

Board meetings and attendance

The Board held a total of 23 meetings in line with the requirements of the ALMANAC and the board workplan approved for implementation in the year under review as broken down below:

Meetings	Ordinary	Special	Total	Attendance	Percentage
Full Board	4	2	6	66	100%
Strategy and Technical Committee	5	0	5	23	92%
Finance, Human Resource and Governance Committee	6	2	8	36	100%
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee	4	0	4	18	90%
Adhoc Meetings	0	0	0	0	0%
Other Meetings and Invitations	17	0	17	39	100%

Succession plan

The Board is cognizant of the importance of a board succession planning policy. The Board has proposed that the appointments of directors be undertaken by the Ministry of Water Sanitation and Irrigation on a staggered basis to allow for continuity.

Board charter

The Authority has put in place mechanisms for a corporate governance framework that is outlined in the Board and Committee Charters approved by the Board.

The Board Charter which acts as a reference guide for the Directors is inspired by the dictates of good corporate governance. The framework ensures a clear division of duties and role of the Chairman and the Registrar/ Chief Executive Officer. It stipulates the individual and collective

responsibilities, powers, duties, obligations and the liabilities of the Directors. It sets out the roles and responsibilities of Directors with respect to its strategic, oversight role, stewardship and fiduciary responsibilities. The Board Charter provides policy direction on issues of accountability, transparency, value addition, legitimacy, and overall credibility and business operations of the Entity.

Process of appointment and removal of directors

Section. 3 of the Hydrologists Act No 19 of 2017 provides the procedure of appointment and removal of the Board of Directors.

The current Board has nine (9) members who possess a broad range of skills and competencies, including legal, finance, human resources, economics and management among others.

Roles and functions of the Board

The primary role of the Board is to ensure long-term wealth and prosperity of the entity for the benefit of customers, employees and other stakeholders. The Board is responsible for policy formulation; Strategic Leadership and Planning; Resource Mobilization and Project management; Decision making; Compliance and Risk Characterization; Monitoring Progress and Direction/ Executive Performance

Induction and training

No induction nor training of the Board was undertaken in the year under review.

Board and member performance

It is important that the Board continually evaluates its performance against set targets. Consequently, the Board undertakes an annual evaluation of its performance and effectiveness in order to identify the areas for improvement and addresses them.

Conflict of interest

Board members have a statutory duty not to place themselves in a position where there is a conflict (actual or potential) between their duties to the entity and their personal interests (including the interest of a family member), the interest of any associated organization or person, or their duties to third parties. All Board members are required to declare their interest in any matter before the Board which might create a potential conflict of interest, before such matter is considered and deliberated upon. Such a member shall then be required to excuse himself/herself from discussions and decisions on matters in which they have a conflict of interest. In the extreme case of continuing material conflict of interest, good practice requires the Director to abstain from a Board Decision.

The Board did not register any conflict of interest in the year under review.

Board remuneration

The Directors' remuneration rates are as outlined in the State Corporations Act and by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission. The Directors' fees are paid upon invitation and attendance of board meetings. The chairman receives a monthly honorarium.

Ethics and conduct

All Board members subscribe to the code of ethical standards as set out in the Code of Governance and relevant appointing instruments.

Governance audit

The Board did not undertake an annual governance audit as required by the governance parameters of the Code of Germanane.

8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board has relied on grants from the Government to support its activities. The Hydrologists Registration Board's mandate is to spearhead the responsibility of registering and regulating all persons and entities practicing in the field of Hydrology and building capacity for individual hydrologists and hydrology consulting firms, as well as regulating their conduct for improved and sustainable performance of the Hydrology profession. The Board's role is to set policy and offer guidance in carrying out activities and program geared towards implementing the Board's Strategic Plan.

Based on its draft Strategic Plan, the Board identified the following key result areas:

- Regulation, coordination and overseeing the practice of Hydrology through registration, licensing and monitoring of hydrologists;
- Enhancing standards of professional competence by establishing standards and procedures for registration of individuals qualified in hydrological sciences and establishing and maintaining ethical standards and guidelines in the hydrology profession.
- Enhancing research in hydrological services by facilitating resources for coordinating research, investigations and surveys and providing a platform for sharing with other hydrology professionals and with all other stakeholders;
- Certification of hydrological studies for design of hydrological structures;
- Forming partnerships and undertaking resource mobilization to enhance its activities; and
- Building human resource capacity.

Major risks facing the Board

Operational risks:

- 1. These include lack of key officers such as a Finance Officer, Economist, Accountant which has impeded Board operations, preparation of reports and compliance with statutory timelines;
- Apart from the Registrar, all other staff have been temporarily deployed to the Board to
 offer support, while still undertaking their normal duties. Therefore, the Board has been
 unable to achieve the desired level of operational efficiency;
- 3. The limited office space affects operational efficiency.

Finance risks:

Inadequate funding restricted the Board's activities such as Board and Committee meetings, training and induction, stakeholder workshops, media advertisements, procurement of insurance cover, among others

4. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The Hydrologists Registration Board exists to ensure a competent hydrology profession thrives, driven by well trained and competent hydrology professionals, able to design and undertake hydrological analysis for development of water infrastructure and programs. This will ensure the existence of sustainable hydrological projects and programs thus improving livelihoods. This is what will guide us to deliver our strategy, putting the customer/citizen first, delivering relevant services, and improving operational excellence. Below is an outline of the Board's policies and activities that promote sustainability.

a) Sustainability strategy and profile

The Board is national in its scope of coverage and has unique functions. The top management especially the accounting officer should make reference to sustainable efforts, broad trends in political and macroeconomic factors affecting sustainability priorities, reference to international best practices and key achievements and failure.

b) Employee welfare

The Board did not hire staff during the year under review. However, future recruitment will take account of all relevant laws, regulations and policies guiding the hiring process and will take into account the gender ratio, stakeholder participation, and the applicable review processes. Skills and competence will be improved through continuous training programs; careers, appraisal and reward systems will be implemented. The policy on safety and compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007 will be taken into account.

c) Market place practices-

The Board observed the following:

- i) Responsible competition practice.
 - The Board gave fair chance to all their suppliers regardless of their race, ethnicity or disability. Market surveys were always done before procurement.
- ii) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations The Board maintained cordial relationships with its suppliers through fair competition in awarding of contracts as stipulated in Public Procurement and Disposal Acts and other relevant regulations. Prompt payment was made upon invoicing.
- iii) Responsible marketing and advertisement Through the Boards website and social media pages, relevant information has been disseminated to the public thus creating awareness.
- iv) Product stewardship Clients' information was ethically and properly kept; Information is only shared to third party upon authorization.

d) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Under the year under review the Board participated in a Corporate Social Responsibility activity by participating in the Ministerial Tree Planting Campaign in Mwache Catchment Area as a presidential directive ahead of the commencement of construction of Mwache Dam. The Board availed a total of 1,000 tree seedlings alongside other critical supplies towards this noble course.

5. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, which show the state of the Boards affairs.

i) Principal activities

The principal activity is to guide the Board in fulfilling its mandate to regulate, co-ordinate and oversee practice of hydrology among other activities.

ii) Results

The results of the Entity for the year ended June 30, 2022, are set out on page 1.

iii) Directors

The members of the Board Directors who served during the year are shown in the table below.

S/N	Name	Organization	Appointment	Designation
			Date	
1	Lawrence Thooko	Independent	5 th August, 2022	Chairperson
2	Benson Cheboswony	Independent	5 th December, 2019	Chairperson, Audit and Compliance Committee
3	Eugen M. Mnyamwezi	Independent	5 th December, 2019	Chairperson, Strategy and Technical Committee
4	Eng. Stephen Kogi	Ministry of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works	5 th December, 2019	Alternate Member to PS, Roads
5	Mark Ngecho	National Treasury	5 th December, 2019	Alternate Member to PS, National Treasury
6	Nancy Koech	MWS&I	5 th December, 2019	Alternate Member to PS, MWSI
7	Daniel Mogusu	Chief Hydrologist, MWSI	5 th December, 2019	Member
8	Zephania Ouma	NEMA	5 th December, 2019	Alternate Member to Director- General, NEMA
9	Jeremiah M. Matunda	Independent	5 th December, 2019	Alternate Member to Attorney-General,

iv) Surplus remission

In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management (National Government) Regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year.

The Entity did not make any surplus during the year (FY 2021/2022 Kshs Nil) and hence no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.

v) Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Hydrologists Registration Board in accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 to carry out the audit of the Hydrologists Registration Board for the year/period ended June 30, 2022, in accordance to section 23 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.

By Order of the Board

ROSE A. NYAKWANA

DEPUTY CHIEF STATE COUNSEL

eb,2023

DATE

6. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and (section 14 of the State Corporations Act) require the Board of Management to prepare financial statements in respect of Hydrologists Registration Board, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Institution at the end of the financial year/period and the operating results of the Board for that year/period. The Board of Management Members are also required to ensure that the Board keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Board. The Registrar/Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Board.

In this regard HRB Board of Directors caused preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the applicable laws and guidelines. The Board has also ensured that proper records which disclose reasonable accuracy and financial position of the institution have been provided. The Board accepts responsibility of its financial statements and confirm the appropriateness of the accounting policies applied.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Registrar/Chief Executive Officer to indicate that the Board will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Board's financial statements were approved by the Board on 25th Sept 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Lawrence Thooko

Chairperson, Board of Directors

Date: 22/02/2023

Antony Mwenje

Registrar/CEQ

Date: 22 92 25

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

T 'ephone: +254-(20) 3214000 E-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke



HEADQUARTERS
Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 30084-00100
NAIROBI

Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON HYDROLOGISTS REGISTRATION BOARD FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

- A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the financial statements.
- B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.
- C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hydrologists Registration Board set out on pages 1 to 31, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the

Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Hydrologists Registration Board as at 30 June, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Hydrologists Act, 2017 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAIs). I am independent of the Hydrologists Registration Board Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget and actual expenditure on comparable basis of Kshs.15,000,000 and Kshs.13,374,368 respectively resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshs.1,625,632 (or 11 %) of the approved budget. The under-performance affected the planned activities and programmes which may have impacted negatively on effective service delivery to the public.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Over-Expenditure in Board Expenses

Statement of financial performance and Note 9 to the financial statements reflects Kshs.5,815,472 in respect to Board expenses. The percentage of the Board expenditure amount as a proportion to the expenses was 43% of the operations and was therefore

above the allowable percentage of 5%. This was contrary to the directive from the Executive Office of the President vide Circular number OP/CAB.9/1A of 11 March, 2020 which provides that a Board expenditure for the financial year shall be capped at Kshs.30 Million or 5% of the operations and maintenance budget whichever is less.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the directive from the Executive Office of the President.

2. Lack of an Approved Risk Management Policy

Review of risk management system revealed that the Board did not have an approved Risk Management and Information Communication Technology (ICT) Policy in place to guide in identification and mitigation of organizational risks. This is contrary to the provisions of Chapters 3.2 and 3.6 of the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations on accountability, risk management and internal control. The Code stipulates that the Board should ensure development of a policy on risk management which should consider sustainability, ethics and compliance risks and also establish an ICT Policy which is aligned to the objectives of the organization.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations on accountability, risk management and internal controls.

3. Non-Preparation of Performance Evaluation Report

Review of Board documents revealed that Management did not prepare evaluation reports which should be done annually. This is contrary to the provisions of Chapter 1.12 of the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations which require the Board to determine its performance criteria and undertake annual evaluation of its performance.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations on accountability, risk management and internal controls.

4. Failure to Submit Annual ALMANAC

Review of board documents revealed that Management did not submit their annual ALMANAC to the State Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC) through the Ministry of Water and Sanitation. This is contrary to directive from Part A of the Executive Office of the President Circular number. OP/CAB.9/1A of 11 March, 2020 on Board Meetings, which requires Board Directors to submit their annual ALMANAC to SCAC through the Parent Ministry by the 30 June of every year.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the directive from the Executive Office of the President.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of Internal Audit Reports

Review of audit functions revealed that there were no internal audit reports for the financial year under review. In addition, the audit committee had no minutes to discuss on evaluation of effectiveness of their risk management, internal control and governance processes. Further, there was no evidence that the quarterly reports were submitted to the Accounting Officer.

In the circumstances, oversight over controls, risk management and governance was not undertaken.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Board's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless the Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Board or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Board's financial reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the ISSAIs. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the Board's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Board's ability to continue to sustain its services. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue to sustain its services.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and business activities of the Board to express an opinion on the financial statements.
- Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA Nancy Gallungs, CBS AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

31 March, 2023

8. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

	10000	2,1,2,2,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1,1	
			<u> </u>
Revenue from non-exchange transactions			
Transfers from other governments entities	6	15,000,000	4,333,591
Total revenue		15,000,000	4,333,591
Expenses			
Use of goods and services	7	2,478,931	1,727,586
Employee costs	8	5,079,965	
Board Expenses	9	5,815,472	4,363,701
Repairs and maintenance	10	0	41,950
Total expenses		13,374,368	6,133,237
Other gains/(losses)			
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provision for Audit Fees	14(a)	-	200,000
Surplus before tax		1,625,632	(1,999,646)
Taxation		(0)	(0)
Surplus/(deficit) for the period/year		1,625,632	(1,999,646)
Remission to National Treasury	29	-	-
Net Surplus for the year		1,625,632	(1,999,646)

The notes set out on pages 6 to 29 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 4 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

Accounting Officer Head of Finance
Name: ANIONI MWENIE Name: JAMES K KARRY
Name: LAWRENCE THOCKS

Date: 22/02/23 Date: 22/02/23 Date: 22/02/2023

9. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

	1 2 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200	1.522.702.2	2020-2020
		2.82.8	V1818
Assets			
Current Assets			
Cash and Cash equivalents	11	204,086	300,354
Total Current Assets		204,086	300,354
Non-Current Assets			
Property, Plant and Equipment	12	226,560	
Total Non- Current Assets		226,560	-
Total Assets		430,646	300,354
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Trade and Other Payables	13	404,660	2,100,000
Current Provision	14(a)	400,000	200,000
Total Current Liabilities		804,660	2,300,000
Total Liabilities		804,660	2,300,000
Net Assets			
Revenue Reserves	15	(374,014)	(1,999,646)
Total Net Assets and Liabilities		430,646	300,354

The financial statements set		sped on behalf of the Board of Directors
oy:	1/8mm	hung - Shi
Accounting Officer	Head of Finance	AROLI Chairman of the Board Name: LAWRENCE THOOKS
	ICDAE Mambar Number X	2972
Date: >>40247023	Date: 22/02/23	Date: 22/02/2023

10. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

t Berguert Budit (A.)	the property of the second	le loit
	Kshs	Kshs
As at July 1, 2020	-	
Surplus/ deficit for the year	(1,999,646)	(1,999,646)
As at June 30, 2021	(1,999,646)	(1,999,646)
	5	5
As at July 1, 2021	y (1,999,646)	y (1,999,646)
Surplus/ deficit for the year	1,625,632	1,625,632
As at June 30, 2022	(374,014)	(374,014)

11. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

	i i		1 - 31 - 3 - 3 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5
Cash flows from operating activities			
Receipts			
Transfers from other governments entities		15,000,000	4,333,591
Total receipts		15,000,000	4,333,591
Payments			
Use of goods and services		2,478,931	1,727,586
Employee costs		5,079,965	0
Board Expenses		7,437,372	2,263,701
Repairs and maintenance		0	41,950
Total payments		14,996,268	4,033,237
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities	16	3,732	300,354
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchase of PPE and Intangible assets	12	(100,000)	-
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities		(100,000)	-
Cash flows from financing activities			
_			
Net cash flows from financing Activities		-	
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & Cash equivalents		(96,268)	300,354
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July	11	300,354	-
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June		204,086	300,354

The financial statements set	out on pages 1/10/4 we	re signed on behalf	of the Board of Directors
by: P	/kmm	Mari - Sh	مئارد
by: P-1 Accounting Officer Name Au Tow Mubuil	Head of Finance	K AADA Chairn	nan of the Board
Name + wall who we	Name: J.A.		THINKE HICK THOOKS
Date 22/27/2013	ICPAK Member Numb	3 Date:	22/02/2023
	* ' / * ' /		•

Annual Report and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2022 Hydrologists Registration Board

12. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

	CALL LAND COLUMN		TO TOTAL TAR	IN A BORDER WIND HOLD WINDOWS FOR THE THIRD SO SOLD THE			
	Original budget	Adjustments	Final budget	Actual on comparable basis	Performance difference	% of utilization	
	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs		
	æ	q	C=(a+b)	Q	(p-0)=3	f=d/c*100	
Revenue							
Transfers from Other Governments entities	15,500,000	•	15,500,000	15,000,000	200,000	%22.96	
Total Income	15,500,000	1	15,500,000	15,000,000	500,000	96.77%	(a)
Expenses							
Use of Goods and Services	5,480,000	•	5,480,000	2,478,931	3,001,069	45.23%	(p)
Employee costs	2,020,000	•	2,020,000	5,079,965	-3,059,965	251.48%	(p)
Remuneration of Directors	7,000,000	ı	7,000,000	5,815,472	1,184,528	83.08%	<u> </u>
Repairs and Maintenance	1,000,000	1	1,000,000	0	1,000,000	0.00%	(p)
Total Expenditure	15,500,000	-	15,500,000	13,374,368	2,125,632	89.16%	
Surplus for the period	0	1	0	1,625,632	1,625,632		
Capital Expenditure	•		1		•	•	

Explanations.

a) The variance resulted from uncollected A.I.A projected.

b) The variance resulted from unforeseen board activities for the use of goods and services and general expenses
 c) The variance resulted from increased Board activities and pending bills.
 d) The variance resulted re

item

13. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

The Hydrologists Registration Board is established by and derives its authority and accountability from Hydrologists Act, 2017. The entity is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's Principal activity is to regulate and coordinate the discipline and profession of hydrology in Kenya.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Entity's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act (include any other applicable legislation), and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

1. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 June 2022.

IPSASB deferred the application date of standards from 1st January 2022 owing to Covid 19. This was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The deferral was set for 1st January 2023.

2. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended 30 June 2022.

Standards				
IPSAS 41:	Applicable: 1 st January 2023:			
Financial	The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial			
Instruments	reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and			
	useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment			
	of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.			
	IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful			
	information than IPSAS 29, by:			
	Applying a single classification and measurement model for			

SEMMENTS:	
A CONTROL SOMEONE DE LA CONTROL DE LA CONTRO	financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash
	flows and the objective for which the asset is held;
	Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
	applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing;
	and
	• Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
	hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops
	a strong link between an Entity's risk management strategies and the
	accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk
	management strategy.
IPSAS 42:	Applicable: 1st January 2023
Social	The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
Benefits	representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting
	Entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The
	information provided should help users of the financial statements and
	general-purpose financial reports assess:
	(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.
	(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes;
	and
	(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial
	performance, financial position and cash flows.
Amendments	Applicable: 1 st January 2023:
to Other	a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
IPSAS	components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
resulting from	when IPSAS 41 was issued.
IPSAS 41,	b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
Financial	hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when
Instruments	IPSAS 41 was issued.
	c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

Standarit*	
	financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
	IPSAS 41 was issued.
	Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
	financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which
	were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
Other	Applicable 1 st January 2023
improvements	• IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General
to IPSAS	Government Sector.
	Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA
	2008).
	IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits
	Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longer
	defined in IPSAS.
	IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
	Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now
	superseded by IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 1st January 2023.
IPSAS 43	Applicable 1 st January 2025
	The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
	presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that
	lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that
	faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis
	for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on
	the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.
	The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present
	information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.
IPSAS 44:	Applicable 1 st January 2025
Non- Current	The Standard requires,
Assets Held	Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

Standard	Manager the general manager of the contract of
for Sale and	measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
Discontinued	and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:
Operations	Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be
	presented separately in the statement of financial position and the results
	of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of
	financial performance.

3. Early adoption of standards

The Entity did not early – adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021/2022.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and fines

The Entity recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the Entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The Entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's right to receive payments is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Assembly. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the Entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

The Entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been presented under section 12 of these financial statements.

c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net assets. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable Entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

- i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
- ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

d) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-

to-day maintenance of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of acquisition.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over a 3-year period. Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

The Board depreciates its assets classes over their respective useful life using the following rates (on a prorated basis) as per its depreciation policy:

Motor Vehicles	-	20.00%	(straight line)
Furniture and Fittings	-	12.50%	(straight line)
Computers and Printers	-	33.33%	(straight line)
Office Equipment	-	12.50%	(straight line)

Depreciation is, however, not charged on assets acquired within one month prior to the end of the financial year. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease

term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

- i) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
- ii) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset
- iii) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential
- iv) The availability of resources to complete the asset
- v) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

i) Financial instruments

A. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such

financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Held-to-maturity.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or an Entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an Entity of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the Entity of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

- i) The debtors or an Entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty.
- ii) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
- iii) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
- iv) Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g., changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

B. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition., All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through

the effective interest method amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

j) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, as follows:

i) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

l) Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

m) Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be

measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

n) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Entity to state the reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.

o) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

p) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an Entity pays fixed contributions into a separate Entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

q) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

s) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an Entity with the ability to exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior managers. (Entity to amend accordingly)

t) Service concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise – any significant residual interest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

v) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

w) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. State all judgements, estimates and assumptions made:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual value

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

- a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity.
- b) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- c) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.
- d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.
- e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 40.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. (include provisions applicable for your organisation e.g. provision for bad debts, provisions of obsolete stocks and how management estimates these provisions).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 6. Transfers from Other Government entities

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021	
	KShs	KShs	
Unconditional Grants			
Operational Grant	15,000,000	4,333,591	
Other Grants	0	0	
Total Unconditional Grants	15,000,000	4,333,591	
Conditional Grants			
-	-	_	
Total Government Grants And Subsidies	15,000,000	4,333,591	

Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

Name Of T Entity Sending T Grant	The	Amount recognized to Statement of Financial performance	Amount deferred under deferred income	Amount recognised in capital fund.	Total transfers 2021-22	Prior year 2020-2021
		KShs	KShs	KShs	KShs	KShs
Ministry	of					
Water						
Sanitation a	and					
Irrigation		15,000,000	0	0	15,000,000	4,333,591
Total		15,000,000	0	0	15,000,000	4,333,591

7. Use of Goods and Services

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021
	Kshs	Kshs
Advertising	375,138	64,800
Audit Fees	200,000	±
Conferences and Delegations	956,300	108,000
Office Consumables	0	45,775
Consumables/Hospitality	388,920	156,000
Local travel/Subsistence	0	1,251,108
Fuel and oil	227,427	54,208
IT consumables	0	18,500
Postage	0	375
Printing and Stationery	117,381	25,150
Bank charges	18,265	3,670
Corporate Social Responsibility – Tree Planting	195,500	0
Total	2,478,931	1,727,586

8. Employee Costs

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021
	Kshs	Kshs
Travel, accommodation, subsistence, & other allowances	4,664,965	0
Other employee related costs *	414,800	0
Employee costs	5,079,765	0

9. Board Expenses

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021	
	Kshs	Kshs	
Chairman/Directors' Honoraria	1,020,000	1,615,000	
Sitting Allowances	4,188,000	1,988,001	
Induction and Training	0	547,400	
Travel and Accommodation	430,303	83,000	
Other Allowances	177,370	130,300	
Total	5,815,673	4,363,701	

10. Repairs and Maintenance

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021
	Kshs	Kshs
Office Repairs and Maintenance	0	41,950
Total Repairs and Maintenance	0	41,950

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021 Kshs	
	Kshs		
Current Account	204,086	300,354	
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents	204,086	300,354	

11 (a) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

		2021-2022	2020-2021 Kshs	
Financial Institution	Account number	Kshs		
a) Current Account				
KCB Bank Kenya PLC (Recurrent)	1280254025	204,086	300,354	
Sub- Total		204,086	300,354	
b) Others (Specify)				
Cash In Hand		0	0	
Sub- Total		0	0	
Grand Total		204,086	300,354	

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

1 Toperty, 1 faut and Equipment	Computers & Printers	Total	
Cost	Kshs	Kshs	
As At 1 July 2020	0	0	
Additions	0	0	
Disposals	0	0	
Transfers/Adjustments	(0)	(0)	
As At 30 th June 2021	0	0	
Additions	226,560	226,560	
Disposals	0	0	
Transfer/Adjustments	(0)	(0)	
As At 30 th June 2022	226,560	226,560	
Depreciation and Impairment			
At 1July 2020	(0)	(0)	
Depreciation	(0)	(0)	
Impairment	(0)	(0)	
Transfers/ Adjustments	(0)	(0)	
As At 30 June 2021	0	0	
Depreciation	0	0	
Disposals	0	0	
Impairment	0	0	
Transfer/Adjustment	0	0	
As At 30 th June 2022	0	0	
Net Book Values			
As At 30 th June 2021	0	0	
As At 30 th June2022	226,560	226,560	

Valuation

No equipment was valued in the year ended 30th June 2022.

12 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

Office Equipment wes stated on the historical cost basis the amounts would be as follows:

	Cost	Accumulated Depreciation	NBV
	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs
Computers and Printers	226,560	0	226,560
Total	226,560	0	226,560

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 13. Trade and Other Payables

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021	
	Kshs	Kshs	
Trade payables	126,560	0	
Accrued Board Expenses	122,100	1,740,000	
Accrued Income Tax Withheld	156,000	360,000	
Total trade and other payables	404,660	2,100,000	

14. (a) Current Provisions

Description	Audit Fees	Total
	Kshs	Kshs
Balance b/f	200,000	200,000
Additional provisions on Audit fees	200,000	0
Provision utilised	(0)	(0)
Change due to discount and time value for money	(0)	(0)
Transfers from non -current provisions	0	0
Total provisions year end	400,000	200,000

15. Revenue reserves

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021	
	Kshs	Kshs	
Balance b/f	(1,999,646)	0	
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the period	1,625,632	(1,999,646)	
Balance c/d	(374,014)	(1,999,646)	

16. Cash Generated from Operations

Description	2021-2022	2020-2021
	Kshs	Kshs
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year before tax	1,625,632	(1,999,646)
Adjusted for:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Contribution to provisions	(0)	200,000
Working Capital adjustments:		
Increase/ Decrease in payables	(1,621,900)	2,100,000
Net cash flow from operating activities	3,732	300,354

1 Financial Risk Management

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks. The entity's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The entity does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The Board's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments. Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the entity's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

	Total amount	Fully performing	Past due	Impaired
- ' M' - 2 - 1 - 2	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs
As at 30 June 2022				
Bank balances	204,086	204,086	-	-
Total	204,086	204,086	-	-
As at 30 June 2021				
Bank balances	300,354	300,354	-	<u> </u>
Total	300,354	300,354	-	-

The board did not have any active receivables in the year under review. The board of directors sets the entity's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the entity under non-derivative financial liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

	Less than 1 month	Between 1-3 months	Over 5 months	Total
	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs	Kshs
As at 30 June 2022				
Trade & Other Payables	_	404,660	-	404,660
Provisions	200,000	-	200,000	200,000
Total	200,000	404,660	200,000	804,660
As at 30 June 2021				
Trade & Other Payables	85,000	255,000	1,760,000	2,100,000
Provisions	200,000	-	-	200,000
Total	285,000	255,000	1,760,000	2.300,000

Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

	2021-2022	2020-2021
	Kshs	Kshs
Retained earnings	(374,014)	(1,999,646)
Total funds	(374,014)	(1,999,646)
Total borrowings	0	0
Less: cash and bank balances	(204,086)	(300,354)

	2021-2022	2020-2021
	Kshs	Kshs
Net debt/(excess cash and cash equivalents)	0	0
Gearing	0%	0%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

iv) Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the *entity*, holding 100% of the *entity's* equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of the entity, both domestic and external.

Other related parties include:

- i) The Parent Ministry;
- ii) Other SCs and SAGAs
- iii) Key management;
- iv) Board of directors;

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29 Surplus Remission

In accordance with Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. The entity is not a regulatory authority and hence no remittance was made to the Consolidated Fund.

30 Events after the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

31 Ultimate And Holding Entity

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Ministry of Water Sanitation and Irrigation. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

32 Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

14. APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General's Recommendations

Timeframe: The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. FY2022-2023 (Resolved Resolved) Resolved Status: Not is expected to be the Board committees Management Constitution revised in FY2022/23. comments Resource and Governance Committee had four (4) members. This the composition of the Board Committees revealed that the Strategy was contrary to the provisions of Circular No. OP/CAB.9/1A on the and Technical Committee and the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee had five (5) members while the Finance, Human The Board of Directors comprised of nine (9) members. Review of Management of State Corporations which caps the membership of the board committees to no more than one-third (1/3) of the full board. Membership of Board Committees Reference | Issue / Observations from Auditor No. on the external Report audit

Registrar/ Chief Executive Officer

Date 22/03/2023

Appendix II: Transfers from Other Government Entities

Appendix II	Appendix II: 1 ransiers from Other Government Entires				and the same of th				
Name of									
the					Where R	Where Recorded/recognized	gnized		
MDA/Dono				Statement					,
\$m	Date	Nature:		• •					Total
Transferri	received as	Recurrent/	Total	Financial				Others -	Transfers
ng the	per bank	Developme	Amount -	Performan	Capital	Deferred	Receiva	must be	during the
funds	statement	nt/Others	KES	ce	Fund	Income	ples	specific	Year
	12/08/2021	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
	08/09/2021	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
	30/09/2021	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
	05/11/2021	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
Ministry of	02/12/2021	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
Water,	11/01/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
Sanitation	10/02/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
and	02/03/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
III iganon	04/04/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
	09/05/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
	07/06/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
••••	30/06/2022	Recurrent	1,250,000	1,250,000	0	0	0	0	1,250,000
Total			15,000,000	15,000,000	0	0	0	0	15,000,000